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Amendment 019 

This amendment is raised to publish questions and answers related to the Common Heavy Equipment 
Replacement (CHER) project as follows: 

Q1: In Amendment 016, Canada identifies that the “SACC Standard Instructions allows for Joint 
Ventures if the Bidder chooses to use this type of legal entity for their bid.” 

The use of the words “legal entity” potentially imply the requirement to create a new company 
with the shareholders being those identified in the five scenarios. 

We would suggest that a new legal entity would be a “bidder” in its own right and that a Joint 
Venture can be formed through an agreement (e.g., Teaming Agreement) between parties that 
defines roles in a pursuit (e.g., who will be the prime contractor and who would be a 
subcontractor). Could Canada please clarify the expectations of a Joint Venture structure?

A1: Canada has no intention to require the creation of a new legal entity. The term Legal Entity should 
read Entity. The obligations for a Joint Venture is in SACC 2003 Section 17 below: 

17 (2010-01-11) Joint venture 
1.  A joint venture is an association of two or more parties who combine their money, property, 
knowledge, expertise or other resources in a single joint business enterprise, sometimes referred as a 
consortium, to bid together on a requirement. Bidders who bid as a joint venture must indicate clearly that 
it is a joint venture and provide the following information: 

a. the name of each member of the joint venture; 
b. the Procurement Business Number of each member of the joint venture; 
c. the name of the representative of the joint venture, i.e. the member chosen by the other members 

to act on their behalf, if applicable; 
d. the name of the joint venture, if applicable. 

2.  If the information is not clearly provided in the bid, the Bidder must provide the information on request 
from the Contracting Authority. 

3.  The bid and any resulting contract must be signed by all the members of the joint venture unless one 
member has been appointed to act on behalf of all members of the joint venture. The Contracting 
Authority may, at any time, require each member of the joint venture to confirm that the representative 
has been appointed with full authority to act as its representative for the purposes of the bid solicitation 
and any resulting contract. If a contract is awarded to a joint venture, all members of the joint venture will 
be jointly and severally or solidarily liable for the performance of any resulting contract. 

SACC 2003 04 (2007-11-30) Definition of Bidder 
"Bidder" means the person or entity (or, in the case of a joint venture, the persons or entities) submitting a 
bid to perform a contract for goods, services or both. It does not include the parent, subsidiaries or other 
affiliates of the Bidder, or its subcontractors. 

Q2: In Amendment 016, Canada indicates that “unless the bidder is a joint venture, the essential 
criteria of a subcontractor cannot be taken into consideration.” It is unclear what is meant by this 
statement. Could Canada please expand on what gap they perceive in a prime/subcontractor 
relationship? 

A2: The standard procurement policy is the following: "Bidder" means the person or entity (or, in the case 
of a joint venture, the persons or entities) submitting a bid to perform a contract for goods, services or 
both. It does not include the parent, subsidiaries or other affiliates of the Bidder, or its subcontractors. 
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A Subcontractor is not a party to the Contract and cannot be held responsible for contractual 
performance. Canada cannot bind the subcontractor to the Contract and we have had instances where a 
dispute between a Prime Contractor and a Subcontractor resulted in the Subcontractor terminating its 
agreement with the Contractor resulting in contract failure. An arrangement where the Prime Contractor 
possesses few or none of the aspects which form the essence of the contract creates a risk to Canada for 
contract and project failure. 

Q3: In Amendment 016, Canada has used the word “mandated” in the various scenarios. Is 
Canada considering that it will literally mandate companies into formal arrangements (i.e., is 
industry to freely associate or will Canada define who is in the Joint Venture) and, if so, is Canada 
looking to do this before or after the final RFP is issued?

A3: By policy, the Bidder or entity must be defined as per the Standard Instructions (2003) for each 
bundle in the program. If the Bidder is unable to satisfy the evaluation criteria solely, then the bidder can 
adapt as permitted in SACC 2003, for example through a Joint Venture. The term “mandated” was used 
in the scenario painted in Amendment 016 to ask industry the implications of such an arrangement.  You 
are invited to respond to those scenarios.   

This policy can be modified to possibly allow the essential criteria of a subcontractor to be taken into 
consideration without being in a joint venture should there be a business case which supported Canada 
assuming this risk. Should you wish to provide information and recommendations into such a business 
case, you are invited to respond to the Scenarios included in Amendment 016. 

The Bidder, the person or entity or, in the case of a joint venture, the persons or entities, must be defined 
at the time of submitting the bid. 

Q4: In Amendment 016, is Canada anticipating doing this for every bundle in the program or is 
Canada’s intent that this would apply if the procurement combines all 8 bundles together under 
one contract? 

A4: Canada intends to issue a separate Request for Proposal (RFP) for each bundle and bidders will be 
required to respond to each RFP as a distinct proposal. Canada does not intend to combine all eight 
bundles together under one contract. 

SACC 2003 would apply to all bundles, unless changes are permitted to specific bundles as explained in 
Answer 3.  

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged. 


